### **Public Health Interventions Advisory Committee (PHIAC)**

# PHIAC 59 – Social and emotional wellbeing – early years & Skin cancer prevention: information, resources and environmental changes

## Minutes of the meeting held on 20<sup>th</sup> July 2012

Attendees	PHIAC attendees Catherine Law, Bren McInerney, Ann Hoskins, Susan Michie, David Sloan, Jane Putsey, Stephen Walters, David McDaid, Amanda Hoey (10.10), Philip Cutler (11.00), Stephen Morris, Matt Kearney, Ruth Hall and Stephanie Taylor  Co-optees and Experts Eva Lloyd (University of East London) (until 15.00)  NICE Attendees Mike Kelly, Natalie Bartle, Antony Morgan, Patricia Mountain, Peter Shearn (until 15.00), Ruaraidh Hill (until 15.00)  Contractors Stephen Boxford, Cordis Bright  Observers None
Authors	Natalie Bartle, Antony Morgan
Audience	Members of the public, PHIAC

Agenda Item	Minutes	Action
1. Welcome and introductions	The meeting started at 10.15.	
miroduonons	The Chair welcomed attendees to the 59 <sup>th</sup> PHIAC meeting.	
	The contractor and expert introduced	

	themselves to the committee.	
2. Apologies for Absence	The chair welcomed the members of public to the meeting.	
Absence	Apologies were received from Lynne Reaye (Family Nurse Partnership Lambeth), Sarah Stewart-Brown (Warwick University), Liz James (Barnardos), Sarah Byford, Toby Prevost, Lesley de Meza, John Macleod, Dale Robinson, Joyce Rothschild, Jo Cooke, Kamran Siddiqi, Muriel James, John Barker, Mike Rayner, KK Cheng and Richard Fordham.	
3.Declarations of Interest	Members, contractors and experts were requested to declare their interests in relation to Social and emotional wellbeing – early years.	
	A number of declarations of interest had been received in writing prior to the meeting.	
	Meeting attendees were asked to declare these interests again and any additional declarations were recorded.	
	Personal pecuniary interest	
	None	
	Personal family interest	
	David Sloan – David's wife is an academic in the field of early years and has been and continues to research the topic. She is also a non- executive director of a Trust which runs a preschool programme. And she is currently on a Department for Education (DFE) advisory group.	
	Phil Cutler – Phil's wife Dr Mfanwy Franks is a Senior Researcher at The Children's Society.	
	Non-personal pecuniary interest	
	Catherine Law – Catherine carries out research in the field of early years, though not specifically in interventions to promote social and emotional wellbeing. Her research relates to the wider determinants of health (particularly physical health) in the	

#### Minutes of the meeting held on 20<sup>th</sup> July 2012

early years and the relationship to national policy.

Catherine may benefit from future research funding in this topic area.

David McDaid – David has received several research and policy analysis grants at European Commission level to look at the economics of early intervention. He has also done work for the Department of Health and may benefit from future research funding in this topic area.

Stephanie Taylor – Stephanie's employing organisation has received, and is currently in receipt of, research funding for studies in the well being of children and young people.

Jane Putsey – Jane is a member of The Breastfeeding Network (BFN) and on the UNICEF UK baby friendly designation committee. Both organisations may receive funding.

Eva Lloyd – Eva's department at the University of East London has in the past received research funding in this field and it is likely that she will seek further research funding in the future.

Stephen Walters - The department that Stephen works for (ScHARR, University of Sheffield) has contracts and/or research grants with the NIHR, HTA and NICE.

#### Personal non-pecuniary interest

Catherine Law - Catherine advocates for the promotion of health in the early years, particularly in relation to reduction of health inequalities.

Bren McInerney – Bren has implementation interests in this topic.

Eva Lloyd – Eva has undertaken research in this area for over 25 years. She is an adviser to the Department for Education and Department of Health on early years issues via their joint 'co-production' process.

Jane Putsey – Jane has stated clear opinions on breast feeding and it's relation to social and emotional wellbeing.

		1
	Stephanie Taylor – Stephanie is involved in research studies on the well being of children and young people.  Phil Cutler arrived at 11.30 and the meeting was declared quorate.  The Chair stated that she and the Director of the Centre of Public Health Excellence (CPHE), NICE are content that none of the	
	declarations of interest prevent participants from taking part in the meeting.  The Director of CPHE is content that none of the declarations of interest prevent Catherine Law from Chairing the meeting.	
4. Social and emotional wellbeing – early years: Considering feedback on the draft guidance	Social and emotional wellbeing – early years: Considering feedback on the draft guidance (Amanda Killoran, Analyst, Centre of Public Health, NICE) Amanda Killoran presented an overview of stakeholder comments on the draft guidance and the range and type of comments received from stakeholders.	
	a. Overview of the Fieldwork (Stephen Boxford, Cordis Bright) Stephen Boxford presented the findings from 2 fieldwork reports - the first one with professionals, the second with parents and carers.	
	b. Equality impact assessment (Ruaraidh Hill, Analyst, Centre of Public Health, NICE) Ruaraidh Hill presented the results of the Equality impact assessment.	
	c. Questions and discussion (All) The committee raised a few questions for clarification.	
	It was agreed that adding 'sector' to the stakeholder response table would be useful at identifying some stakeholders.  Stephen Boxford left the meeting at 11.15.	CPHE Team to discuss this.
5. Social and	5. Social and emotional wellbeing – early	
emotional	years: revising the guidance	
wellbeing – early	yours. revising the guidance	
	a Suggested revisions to the	
years: revising	a. Suggested revisions to the	
the guidance	recommendations (Amanda Killoran,	
	Analyst, NICE) Amanda Killoran provided	
	an overview of the suggested revisions to	
	the recommendations.	

	<ul> <li>b. Discussion (All) The committee discussed the recommendations. Specific points raised included:</li> <li>It was noted that there were many influences on social and emotional wellbeing. The guidance needs to focus on the interventions in the referral and scope (home visiting and early education).</li> <li>The committee supported that the distinction between the individual and population level should be explicit, particularly for the use of risk factors for identification.</li> </ul>	
	The committee supported the use of the term 'parents' (rather than "carer" or focusing mainly on mothers).	
6. Social and emotional wellbeing – early years: revising the guidance continued	6. Social and emotional wellbeing – early years: revising the guidance continued  a. Discussion (all)  The committee continued the discussion of the recommendations and stakeholder comments.	
	The dynamic nature of vulnerability was discussed.  It was agreed that this Guidance needs to fit into a wider commissioning strategy.	
	Services need to work together and deliver using evidence-based practice.  c. Research recommendations (All) These were discussed and agreed.	
7. Implementation and dissemination	7. Implementation and dissemination: Implications for local authorities (Mike Kelly, Director, CPHE, NICE) Mike Kelly provided an overview of Local Government Public Health Briefings.	NB to add Local Government Public Health Briefings to the Agenda for the next PHIAC
	Discussion (All) The committee discussed whether this Guidance might be used to contribute to a local authority briefing in this area. Overall there was strong support for this.	meeting in September. There might be a demonstration of the ROI model – CPHE team to

	7.1 Implementation and dissemination Mandy Harling, Implementation Advisor at NICE will be contacting PHIAC discussants and cooptees for support on developing implementation tools. Other members of the committee should contact Mandy if they want to be involved	follow this up.  PHIAC to contact Mandy Harling (NICE, Implementation Adviser) if they require further details on the implementation
8. Next steps	8. Social and emotional wellbeing - early years: next steps (Antony Morgan, Associate Director, NICE) Antony Morgan concluded the session highlighting key dates for further work on this Guidance. Guidance will be published in October 2012.  The Chair thanked the Expert and Contractor who attended for this session.  Eva Lloyd left the meeting at 15.00.	
9. Skin cancer prevention: information provision, resources and environmental changes	9. Skin cancer prevention: information provision, resources and environmental changes  Declarations of Interest (ALL) The Chair asked all members to declare any potential conflicts of interests in relation to Skin cancer prevention: information, resources, and environmental changes.  Declarations specific to today's meeting were made under the following categories:  Personal pecuniary interest None Personal family interest None Non-personal pecuniary interest None Personal non-pecuniary interest None There had not been any declarations of	
10. Skin cancer prevention: information provision, resources and environmental changes	interest in advance of the meeting.  10. Skin cancer prevention: information provision, resources and environmental changes: Overview (Antony Morgan, Associate Director, CPHE, NICE) Antony Morgan reminded the committee about the context for this review.  a. Discussion (All) Committee	

	members discussed whether the guidance should be updated following evidence submitted by the British Association of Dermatologists and stakeholder consultation. The following points were raised:  • This is an area of scientific uncertainty; there is polarisation of views from stakeholders; • Stakeholder comments do not change the views held by PHIAC prior to consultation. • Two new referrals received from the DH on vitamin D and safe sunlight exposure provide an opportunity for the evidence on the efficacy of SPF to be reviewed.  In conclusion PHIAC was not minded to revise the guidance at this point. However, it was agreed that the current footnote relating to SPF in recommendation 3 should be moved into the main body of text to highlight the behavioural issues associated with applying sunscreen.  Next Steps (Antony Morgan, Associate Director, CPHE) Antony provided an outline of the process and key dates. The Review Decision will be published on the 15 <sup>th</sup> August.	MK to ask Editors about including a reference to the new referrals in the body of the Guidance.
12. Minutes of the meeting of PHIAC 58 (ALL)	a) The draft minutes of PHIAC 58 were agreed to be a correct record of the meeting held on 18 <sup>th</sup> May 2012.	Natalie Bartle to upload draft minutes to NICE website from PHIAC 58.
13. Topic Selection (ALL)	a) The committee were asked to suggest possible topics for future public health guidance.  None.	
11. AOB (Chair)	<ul> <li>11. AOB The committee raised the following items of AOB:</li> <li>NICE to consider use of technology in helping with quoracy;</li> </ul>	

# Minutes of the meeting held on 20<sup>th</sup> July 2012

The Meeting closed at 4.00pm.	